UNITED
NATIONS CAT

Di str.
GENERAL

Convention against Torture
and Other Cruel, Inhuman

. CAT/ C/ SR. 348
or Degrading Treatment 13 Novermber 1998
or Punishment

Oiginal: ENGLISH

COW TTEE AGAI NST TORTURE
Twenty-first session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 348t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 11 November 1998, at 10 a.m

Chai rman: M. BURNS

CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19
OF THE CONVENTI ON

Initial report of Yugoslavia

ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 98-19492 (E)



CAT/ C/ SR. 348
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (agenda item 4)

Initial report of Yugoslavia (CAT/C/ 16/ Add. 7; HRI/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 40)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. Hodza, M. D ordjevic,
M. Krstic, Ms. Sokovic, Ms. N kolic and Ms. Boskovi c-Prodanovic
(Yugosl avia) took places at the Committee table.

2. The CHAIRMAN invited the delegation to introduce the initial report of
Yugosl avia (CAT/ C/ 16/ Add. 7).

3. M. HODZA (Yugoslavia) said that Yugoslavia, on ratifying the Convention
in 1991, had recognized the Conmmttee's conpetence under articles 21 and 22.
Hi s country had ratified all major human rights instruments, including the two
I nternational Covenants, the Convention on the Rights of the Child, the
Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forms of Racial Discrimnation and the
Convention on the Elimnation of All Forms of Discrimnation against Wnen.

It endeavoured in all cases, circunstances permtting, to honour its reporting
obl i gati ons.

4, During the period covered by the report, the civil war in neighbouring
countries and the harsh econom ¢ sanctions inmposed on Yugosl avia had exerted a
maj or adverse inpact on the country's economc, political and socia

devel opnent as well as on the tinmely fulfilnment of its obligations under
international treaties, including the Convention

5. The Federal Republic of Yugoslavia, conprising the republics of Serbia
and Mont enegro, was the successor State to the former Yugoslavia and had
succeeded in preserving that country's internal stability and its

mul ti-ethnic, nulti-denom national and nulticultural character. 1t had
continued to provide for its citizens' basic needs despite internationa

i sol ation, war anong its nei ghbours, econonic sanctions and the presence of
some 700, 000 refugees from Croatia and Bosnia and Herzegovi na. Yugosl avia had
al so continued to foster civil society, the rule of |aw and respect for human
rights. Both the Federal Constitution and the constitutions of the two
republics guaranteed minority rights.

6. The Federal Constitution guaranteed the right to life, to physical and
mental integrity, to privacy and to personal dignity and security. It
guaranteed respect for human dignity in crimnal and other judicia

proceedi ngs, both during periods of restriction or deprivation of |iberty and
during the enforcenent of a penalty. No one could be subjected to torture or
to degrading treatnent or punishment. Medical and other experinments required
the consent of the person concerned.

7. The Federal Constitution stipulated that everyone had the right to
personal freedom that no one could be deprived of freedom save as prescri bed
by |aw and that anyone deprived of his freedomhad the right to retain a

def ence counsel. Arbitrary arrest, acts of violence against a person deprived
of his liberty or whose liberty was restricted, and the extortion of



CAT/ C/ SR. 348
page 3

conf essions or depositions were punishable offences. The constitutions and
crimnal |egislation of the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia guaranteed the
right to a fair trial, inmpunity for acts that had not been punishable at the
time of conm ssion, the presunption of innocence, the right of appeal

i ncludi ng access to extraordi nary and constitutional renedies, and the right
to rehabilitation and conmpensation for damages suffered in cases of w ongful
deprivation of liberty or a baseless court ruling.

8. The Federal Constitution guaranteed equality to all citizens regardless
of their ethnic origin, race, sex, |anguage, religion, political or other
bel i ef s, education, social background, financial status and other persona
characteristics. Al breaches of the principle of equality were punishable
under the country's crimnal |aw.

9. Fol |l owi ng the adoption of the Federal Constitution in 1992, a

| arge-scal e | egislative reformprocess had been initiated. The Federa
Assenbly was expected to adopt a new draft Federal Crimnal Code in 1999 t hat
woul d replace the Crim nal Code of Yugoslavia, the Crimnal Code of Serbia and
the Crimnal Code of Montenegro. The new Crim nal Code, based on Yugosl av
research and practice and on modern crimnal |egislation in other European
countries, would contain no provision for capital punishment. A draft Code of
Crimnal Procedure was al so being prepared in the light of simlar principles.

10. The situation in the southern Serbian Autononmous Provi nce of Kosovo and
Met ohi ja had recently attracted considerable attention in the internationa
medi a. The 26 national mnorities living in the territory of the Federa
Republ i ¢ of Yugosl avia accounted for about one third of the country's
popul ati on. The Federal Constitution contained special provisions relating to
persons from nnational mnorities that were based on international standards,
especially those laid down in the International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights and the Council of Europe's Framework Convention for the
Protection of National Mnorities. In Kosovo and Metohija, Albanian politica
parti es and associations operated freely, many daily and weekly newspapers and
books were published in the Al banian | anguage and the el ectronic nedia
broadcast a range of programmes in Al banian. Persons belonging to the

Al bani an national mnority enjoyed all rights under the Constitution and the

| egi sl ati on of Yugoslavia, w thout restrictions.

11. However, a considerabl e nunmber of persons belonging to that mnority
opted out of the country's social and political life, refusing to vote or
stand for election, to take part in the popul ati on census and to exercise
their educational and cultural rights. At the same tine, they took advantage,
when it suited them of such rights as access to health care services,

pensi ons and social welfare benefits and the right to register and operate
private business firms.

12. Al banian terrorists with strong separati st tendencies had been operating
in the territory of Kosovo and Metohija for several years. |In the first nine
nont hs of 1998, sone 1,500 terrorist incidents had clained the |ives of 152
civilians and over 100 police officers and had injured about 130 civilians and
380 police officers. The civilian victinms had included Serbs, Montenegrins
and persons belonging to the Al banian and other national mnorities. Al banian



CAT/ C/ SR. 348
page 4

terrorists had intimdated, blackmailed and abducted civilians who refused to
give thempolitical, financial or other forns of support. They had abducted
260 civilians and 11 police officers.

13. The authorities had taken appropriate action, in accordance with the
law, to deal with the terrorist threat. A political agreement had recently
been concl uded between President Slobodan M| osevic and the United States
Speci al Representative Richard Hol brooke. An el even-point plan had been
adopted and tinme-limts set for a political settlement of the i ssue of Kosovo
and Metohija. The Covernnents of the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia and of
Serbia were determned to abide by all their undertakings in order to reach a
peaceful political settlement as soon as possible. Pursuant to an Agreenent
concl uded between the Federal Governnent and the Chairman of the Organization
for Security and Cooperation in Europe (OSCE), an OSCE Verification M ssion
was currently being depl oyed.

14. Yugosl av | egislation, particularly crimnal |egislation, had been
brought into line with the Convention. There was no torture or
ill-treatnment - only cases of inproper use or overstepping of authority,
mostly in connection with the application of nmeans of coercion such as
physical force or truncheons. Such acts were punishable by | aw.

15. Hi s Government trusted that its cooperation with the Comrttee would
contribute to the full inplenentation of the Convention in Yugosl avia.

16. M. YAKOVLEV (Country Rapporteur) said that the high | evel of the
Yugosl av del egati on denonstrated a willingness on the part of the authorities
to cooperate fully with the Cormittee.

17. The Committee strongly supported the principle that no internal or
external circunmstances could be invoked to justify breaches of the Convention
and he commended Yugoslavia on its recognition of the Comrittee's conpetence
to receive and consider comuni cations fromor on behalf of individuals
subject to its jurisdiction who clainmed to be victinms of a violation of the
provi si ons of the Conventi on.

18. Yugoslavia's initial report had been due in 1992. He trusted that the
Government would in future be nore pronmpt in submitting its reports. It was
gratifying, however, that article 25 of the Federal Constitution prohibited
vi ol ence agai nst persons deprived of their |iberty and the extortion of
confessions or depositions. The Comrittee would be interested, of course, to
hear nore about its practical application

19. He wel comed the information that a new Crimnal Code and a new Code of
Crimnal Procedure were being drafted and asked how the definition of torture
contained in article 1 of the Convention was to be incorporated into that new
| egislation, in a manner that was not confined nerely to violence by
officials. Wth reference to paragraph 37 of the report, since sone cases of
ill-treatnment had resulted in the death of detainees, did the sentences

i nclude i nprisonment and, if so, for howlong? Did the disciplinary tribunals
menti oned i nclude persons outside the police force, or nenbers of the nedica
prof ession? What kind of rehabilitation treatnment or conpensati on was
available to victins in cases where abuse of power was clearly identified at



CAT/ C/ SR. 348
page 5

the tinme of sentencing? Was there an independent inspection systemfor places
of detention, since such inspection could exercise a preventive effect? D d
the training of prison staff, menbers of the police and judges include

i nformati on on human rights and, specifically, on the Convention agai nst
Torture? Were courts bound to investigate conplaints of torture during police
detention? Had the rule of inadm ssibility of evidence obtained under torture
ever been applied by a court? He would also |ike information on prevailing
soci al and political circunstances, which were extrenely inportant, in
conjunction with an appropriate | egal framework, in inplenmenting the
Conventi on.

20. M. ZUPANNIN (Alternate Country Rapporteur) commended the positive
aspects of the report, but said he wished to raise certain technical and | ega
considerations. It was inportant clearly to define torture, in keeping with
article 1 of the Convention, and systematically incorporate the offence of
torture in the Crimnal Code and other |egislation, pursuant to article 4.
Some States took the view that torture was covered by other rel ated of fences,
but in fact the definition contained in article 1 was extrenely specific and,
i deal 'y, should be incorporated in full. Intention and conspiracy to conmmt
torture should al so be punishable. Such considerations were particularly

i nportant as the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia was preparing to introduce its
new crimnal |egislation

21. In regard to article 15 of the Convention, a provision had been

i ntroduced into donestic legislation in 1974 on the inadmissibility of tainted
evidence in trials, which would include evidence obtained under torture.
However, thought should be given to preventing the judges responsible for
deciding on the nerits of cases from being exposed to such tainted evidence.
Was it intended to incorporate the article 15 exclusionary rule in the new
Crimnal Code? |If so, how would it be worded? Did the Constitutional Court
have jurisdiction to hear cases submtted by individuals? If so, could they

i medi ately apply to the Constitutional Court or was it necessary first to
exhaust other renedies? |If such a possibility did exist, how many such cases
had been dealt with by the Constitutional Court? Ws access granted to

def ence counsel during the three days in which a person could be held before
bei ng brought before the investigating judge? |If a person alleged that
torture had occurred during the period of police detention - the period when
det ai nees were nmost exposed to such abuse - and then conpl ai ned either to the
i nvestigating judge or the trial judge, was the prosecutor under an obligation
to prosecute and, if so, did that occur in practice? How many such cases had
been investigated, as required under the ternms of article 12 of the
Convention? Wat reasons had been advanced by the prosecutor in cases of

non- prosecuti on and what had been the grounds for any acquittal s?

22. It was regrettable that the initial report did not contain nore
extensive statistical information in connection with article 11. As to
article 14, how many of the individuals who had obtained redress and were
entitled to fair and equitable conpensati on had been victinms of torture? What
was the nature of the conpensation? Lastly, the information contained in

par agraphs 64, 65 and 66 dealt with the right of appeal and not the civil,
rather than crimnal, conplaints that were the subject matter of article 13.



CAT/ C/ SR. 348
page 6

23. M. S@RENSEN said he endorsed the views of the two Rapporteurs. As a
medi cal doctor, he would confine his remarks to articles 10 and 14. Wile he
wel comed the checks carried out on the conduct of nenbers of the police and
the arny and of nedical personnel, the scope of article 10 was in fact

consi derably broader and required that both education and information shoul d
be fully included in training. For instance, where doctors were concerned,
their role in inventing torture nmethods, treating victins so that they could
continue to be tortured and falsifying nedical reports, mght be extensive.
Simlarly, given the nunmber of torture victinms in all parts of Serbia, doctors
shoul d be able to identify torture victins fromthe way in which they behaved
and should be trained to treat them How was the prohibition on torture dealt
with in the undergraduate and post-graduate training of nedical doctors, and
when had it first been introduced?

24. VWhile the Committee shared the concerns expressed about terrorist
activity, article 2 explicitly stated that no exceptional circunstances

what soever could justify torture. A nunmber of discrepancies appeared to exi st
between the information contained in the report and that appearing in reports
by reliable NGOs. He would |like nore up-to-date statistics for 1997 and 1998,
i ncluding a breakdown for Kosovo. The crucial inportance of article 14 nust
be emphasi zed. The inpunity of torturers could not be tolerated, particularly
since their prosecution mght constitute an inportant element in the nedica
rehabilitation of victinms. New rehabilitation centres had been established in
Yugosl avi a whi ch should receive the fullest support in providing treatment for
all victinms since, according to NGO reports, all sides bore their share of
responsibility. He invited the State party to contribute to the

United Nations Voluntary Fund for the Victinms of Torture, for even a token
contribution would signal the Governnment's condemation of the practice of
torture.

25. M. MAVROVWMATI S said he deeply hoped for a quick and peaceful settlenent
to the problens afflicting Yugoslavia, one that would respect the country's
territorial integrity yet take account of the rights of minorities. In view
of the many all egati ons nade both by States and by non-governnenta

organi zations, it would have behoved the State party to submt its report on
time. For a sophisticated country |ike Yugoslavia, such a delay was

i nexplicable. He greatly welcomed the declarati on made by Yugosl avi a under
article 22, which permtted individual citizens to petition the Conmttee
directly. Had national |egislation been enacted to provide for automatic
enforcenent of the Cormittee’s decisions? Yugoslavia should make every effort
toreply in detail to all allegations contained in comuni cati ons under
consideration in a treaty body and shoul d avoi d hidi ng behind bl anket deni al s.

26. Furthernore, all States parties should incorporate in domestic |aw the
definition of torture that was set out in the Convention, thereby
denonstrating their good faith as well as their readi ness to undertake
measures to eradi cate such practices. The Yugoslav Constitution nade no
mention of cruel, degrading or inhuman treatnent in connection with violence
agai nst persons deprived of liberty. Safeguards should be built into the

| egal framework that woul d protect detained individuals in the first few hours
after their arrests, which was the tinme when they were nost likely to be



CAT/ C/ SR. 348
page 7

subj ected to torture; the right to consult a | awer before maki ng any
statement whatever; the right to notify others of the place of detention; and
the right to see a doctor

27. The report, which nmade no nention of Kosovo, gl ossed over the rea
nature of the situation. It was in situations of that kind that safeguards
li ke the ones contained in the Convention were of the utnmpst inmportance, in
whi ch connection it would be useful to know how t he Convention ranked in the
domestic legal order. Was it equal to, or did it take precedence over,
domestic legislation? 1In the event of a conflict between its terms and those
of the donestic |egislation, which prevailed? Could a |aw that postdated
Yugosl avia’s ratification of the Convention be inconsistent with the

Conventi on?

28. Furthernore, paragraph 31 of the report was unclear: he would like to
know whether nmilitary courts had jurisdiction over civilians and, if so, under
what circunstances. Paragraph 37 stated that the police acted on the basis of
| aws and | egal enactnments which established the terns and conditions for the
use of coercion. The State party should explain the neaning of that

assertion. Again, paragraph 41 dubiously contended that al most all cases of
conpl aints against officers of the Mnistry of Justice were based on unfounded
reports and conplaints of citizens under crimnal prosecution. |In the view of
the State party, could alnopst all conplaints conceivably be unfounded?

29. M. EL MASRY said that not only had Yugoslavia ratified the Convention
but the Federal Assenbly had made the declarations in connection with

articles 21 and 22. Under the circunstances, the many reports of the

wi despread conmi ssion of torture in Kosovo were all the nmore shocking, in
particul ar since such acts were not perpetrated sol ely agai nst persons accused
of terrorism |In Kosovo prisons, many atrocious acts had been comm tted

agai nst ethnic Al banians, sone of whom had subsequently died. For exanple,
Nait Hassani had been arrested and a day |ater had been taken to hospital in a
coma as a result of the beating he had received. Arian Curri, arrested in
Kosovo, had been tortured and a police officer had pulled out a knife and cut
a cross on his chest. Oher persons had di sappeared, having | ast been seen in
the custody of the Yugoslav police. It could not, of course, be assuned that
al | di sappeared persons were in detention; sonme mght have fled or gone into
hiding. But in any event, the Yugoslav authorities nust make public the
nunber of persons they had detained, along with their nanmes and ot her
pertinent data.

30. In addition, reports reveal ed that summary executions had been carried
out in places of detention. The Governnment must urgently conduct an

i nvestigation and prosecute the persons responsible for commtting such
egregious acts. Did the Governnment allow the International Conmttee of the
Red Cross access to all persons detained in Kosovo? Even nore inportant, did
the Governnent recognize the conpetence of the International Crimnal Tribuna
for the Former Yugoslavia and, if so, what neasures had been undertaken to
facilitate its work?

31. M. YU Mengjia inquired whether Yugoslavia provided human rights
education to | aw enforcenent personnel, as stipulated in article 10. It was
i nmportant to renenber that article 2, paragraph 2, established that no




CAT/ C/ SR. 348
page 8

exceptional circumstances whatever should be invoked to justify acts of
torture, and that article 4, paragraph 2, required States parties to make such
of fences puni shabl e by appropriate penalties which took into account their
grave nature. In view of the extraordinary situation in Yugoslavia, it would
be useful to know whet her | aw enforcenment personnel readily accepted article 2
and, if they were reluctant to do so, what neasures, if any, the Government
had undertaken to persuade themto abide by its terns.

32. M. SILVA HENRI QUES GASPAR said he too wi shed to voice his concern about
the i ssues and questions raised by other nenbers of the Conmittee. Severa

ot her questions also canme to mind. First, the procedure whereby the detainee
was responsible for requesting the intervention of a judge within a set period
of tinme after his arrest seened highly unusual. Under systens of conparative
international law, it was the judge who nust obligatorily intervene. Had that
procedure changed under the new Law on Crimnal Procedure? Second, he would
like to know what the conposition and conpetence of the mlitary courts were,
and in particular, what safeguards existed to ensure the i ndependence of the
judiciary.

33. Third, it would be useful to know whet her the police units that
conducted interrogations were enpowered to act independently. Wat nechani sns
exi sted to supervise their activities? |f standards of conduct were viol ated,
what neasures, if any, were taken to punish offenders? Could the decisions be
appeal ed? Was the person whose rights had been violated permtted to
participate in disciplinary proceedi ngs?

34. The CHAIRMAN said it would be useful to know what the Serbian Specia
Police was and what powers that force enjoyed. Wat was the structure of its
chain of command and to whomwas it accountable? He would also |ike to know
whet her there existed in Yugoslavia a doctrine equivalent or simlar to that
of habeas corpus. Wen a state of emergency was decl ared, what | ega
protections remai ned and whi ch were suspended?

35. I n Kosovo, many instances had been docunented of the mutilation of

non- conmbat ants, both before and after death. Had investigations been
conducted and, if so, what were the results? Many cases of torture had been
brought to the attention of the Commttee by a nunber of independent sources.
The Cctober 1998 issue of Human Rights Watch stated that during July and
August detai ned individuals had increasingly included human rights activists,
humani tarian aid workers, political party nenmbers, doctors and | awers, many

of whom had been physically abused in custody. It went on to say that that
organi zati on had substantial credible evidence fromlawers and fam |y menbers
that detainees were routinely tortured and ill-treated. Some had died,;
hundreds had been beaten. It indicated that, according to the Yugosl av

Governnment, a round of trials would begin in Cctober, and stated that in the
past terrorismrelated trials had been marred by serious procedura
irregularities, as well as the use of torture to extort confessions.

36. Among the individual cases described was that of M. Destan Rukiqui, a
lawyer in Pristina who had defended dozens of ethnic Al banian politica
prisoners in recent years. He had been arrested in July 1998 after an
incident in which he had objected to the district judge's refusal to permt
himto take notes while reviewing the case file of his client. In prison, he



CAT/ C/ SR. 348
page 9

had been severely beaten with a three-foot |ong baton. Al though that was not,
of course, the nost severe of the reported cases of torture in Kosovo, it
coul d perhaps be seen as illustrative. Ws it a conmon practice to forbid

| awyers to take notes during trials and, if so, what was the rational e?

37. In its introduction, the delegation had stated that there was a | arge
press corps in Yugoslavia. He asked whether Yugoslavia' s press and tel evision
medi a were free and i ndependent. Again, how were judges appoi nted and for
what period? Wo reviewed whet her menmbers of the judiciary needed to be

di sciplined? It was also of some concern to the Conmittee that |egislation
recently enacted in Yugoslavia allowed the authorities to renove

adm ni strators, and even instructors, fromuniversities.

38. The Committee had received abundant material on the ill-treatnment of
Roma and Al bani an detainees. Drawing attention to the definition of torture
in article 1 of the Convention, which included severe pain and suffering
inflicted for reasons based on discrimnation, he asked whether the del egation
considered those reports to be false. What sort of processes were avail able
to respond to such allegations, and were they under way at the nonent?

39. The Committee tended to focus on article 1, but article 16, on cruel

i nhuman or degrading treatnment or punishnent, was equally inportant. |ndeed,
the information the Committee received often fell under article 16 rather than
article 1. \What remedi es were open to persons who considered that their
rights under articles 1 and 16 had been viol ated, were they accessible to the
various groups in Yugoslavia, and how many cases were currently being dealt
with?

40. He invited the del egation of Yugoslavia to reply to the Cormittee's
guestions at the next neeting.

41. The del egation of Yugosl avia w t hdrew.

ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (agenda item 2) (continued)

42. The CHAIRMAN said that at the tenth nmeeting of chairpersons of human
rights treaty bodies, one of the itens on the agenda had been a plan of action
to persuade States parties to increase their financial support for the
Committee against Torture, the Human Rights Committee and the Conmittee on the
Eli m nati on of Racial Discrimmnation. A draft plan had been presented to the
chai rpersons, who had taught that it needed to be revised and strengthened.
Consequently, it had been decided that the plan would be put back on the
agenda of the next meeting of chairpersons, in May 1999. |In the nmeantine, the
Secretariat had been asked to provide himwith a new draft and a proposal had
been made to set up a working group to nonitor progress by the Secretariat on
the plan. The suggestion was that two nenbers from each committee be
appointed to do so. He asked whether two menbers woul d vol unteer to discharge
t hat task.

43. M. SILVA HENRI QUES GASPAR and M. MAVROWATIS offered to serve the
Committee in that function




CAT/ C/ SR. 348
page 10

Progress made in the open-ended working group on a draft optional protocol to
the Convention against Torture and Gther Cruel., |nhuman or Degradi ng Tr eat nent
or_Puni shnent

44, The CHAI RMAN asked M. Sgrensen to report to the Commttee on
devel opnents in the working group on the optional protocol

45, M. SORENSEN said that the open-ended group had met from 28 Septenber
to 9 October 1998. It was currently in its seventh or eighth year and was
engaged in the second reading of the draft.

46. Only limted progress had been made at the neeting. For exanple, it had
not been possible to adopt the nmeeting's report, which would be done at a

| ater date. The neeting had, however, adopted two articles. The first had
been article 15 (fornmer article 12 bis), which read: "Each State Party shal

di ssem nate i nformation about this Protocol, the tasks of the Sub-Committee
and the facilities to be provided to the Sub-Committee during a m ssion to al
concerned authorities and ensure the inclusion of such information in the
training of relevant personnel, civil, police and mlitary, who are involved
in the custody, interrogation or treatnent of persons in situations referred
toin article 1". It was a very inmportant article and would be very useful to
visiting delegations. It was worth noting that, when the Council of Europe's
Conmittee for the Prevention of Torture was about to visit a country, it

al ways sent the head of the del egation a couple of nonths in advance to
explain what it intended to do.

47. The other article adopted at the neeting had been article 19
(previously article 18), which sinmply stated that the protocol would enter
into force 30 days followi ng the deposit with the Secretary-Ceneral of the
twentieth instrunent of ratification or accession

48. It seened that all the non-controversial issues had been cleared up, and
that the crucial points had remained, including articles 1, 8 and 12.

49. Concerning article 1 of the draft, some States were in favour of visits
to countries only on invitation, while others thought that prior consent
shoul d be required. The majority nonethel ess agreed that, if that was the
case, then there was no point in having a protocol. It was strongly felt that
t he protocol should allow visits to countries and that acceptance of visits
was inplicit in the ratification of the protocol

50. A l engthy discussion had been held on the nmandate during such visits,
but the matter did not seemto pose great difficulties. A delegation should
be allowed to go wherever persons were being deprived of their liberty, talk
with themprivately, visit prem ses and the cells, inspect all relevant
docunents and make return and unannounced visits. The general view had been
that a United Nations body nust respect national |law. He had drawn attention
to article 8, paragraph 2 (d), of the European Convention for the Prevention
of Torture and I nhuman or Degradi ng Treatnent or Punishnment, under which a
party must provide the Commttee for the Prevention of Torture with al

i nformati on available to it that was necessary for the Comrittee to carry out
its task and that, in seeking such information, the Comm ttee should have
regard to applicable rules of national |aw and professional ethics.



CAT/ C/ SR. 348
page 11

Revi sed programre of work

51. The CHAIRMAN said that the revised progranme of work, which had been
circulated, took into account changes in practices for dealing with States
parties and afforded the Commttee nore tine to reflect on its concl usions.
States parties would shortly be infornmed of the changes.

Drafting of a list of recurrent issues

52. M. BRUNI (Secretary of the Comrmittee) said that the Commttee had been
asked to identify certain issues which recurred in dialogues with States
parties. That had already been done a long tinme ago, under the chairmanship
of M. Voyane. A list of such issues, which appeared in docunent

CAT/CI XXI/ M sc. 1, had been translated for possible discussion. It was not
exhausti ve. The purpose was to provi de governnent del egations with a genera
i dea of what questions to expect and it was al so useful for those who prepared
training courses. It was sinmply an informal guide.

53. M. ZUPANNIN said he was pleased that the |ist had been made avail abl e.
It would al so be useful to draw up a questionnaire for States parties, which
woul d in addition be valuable for producing conparative statistics. He was
prepared to assist such an effort.

54. The CHAI RMAN proposed that, when the Committee reverted to the question
next week, nenbers who so wi shed coul d make suggestions for inproving the |ist
or for drafting such a questionnaire.

The neeting rose at 12.40 p. m




